
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

August 4, 2021 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 851 4382 6882 

Password: 380218 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order Taylor Jones 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Barbara Sowada 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Taylor Jones 

III. Minutes (For Action) Taylor Jones 

IV. Community Communication  Taylor Jones 

V. Old Business Taylor Jones 

A. COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery - Incident Command Team Update Kim White,  

Director of Emergency Services 

B. Employee Policy (from the Human Resources Committee)  Ed Tardoni 

1. Termination and Appeals 

2. Introductory Period 

C. Rules of Practice Governing Hearings Taylor Jones 

D. Medical Staff Bylaws Dr. Jacques Denker, Medical Staff President 

E. Board Reporting Calendar (For Action) Kara Jackson Kara Jackson, 

 Director of Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety 

F. Board Policies (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Taylor Jones  

A. Board Education Proposal (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

B. Human Resources Committee  Barbara Sowada 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Ed Tardoni  

1. Capital Expenditure Request (For Action) 

2. Bad Debt (For Action) 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey 

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Marty Kelsey 

G. Governance Committee Taylor Jones 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Taylor Jones 

I. Joint Conference Committee Taylor Jones 

1/127



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

August 4, 2021 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 851 4382 6882 

Password: 380218 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

IX. Contract Review Suzan Campbell 

A. Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. Medical Physics Consultants, Inc. 

2. Shadow Mountain Water 

X. Medical Staff Report Dr. Jacques Denker  

XI. Good of the Order                 Taylor Jones 

XII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Taylor Jones 

XIII. Action Following Executive Session Taylor Jones  

XIV. Adjourn Taylor Jones 

 

2/127



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/127



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

July 7, 2021 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met via Zoom in regular 

session on July 7, 2021, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

OATH OF OFFICE 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order. He administered the oath of office and welcomed Ms. 

Pendleton to the Board of Trustees. He said she will be a great asset to the Board and the Hospital.  

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were present online: Mr. Taylor 

Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Jacques Denker, Medical 

Staff President; and Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Jones read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

Mr. Jones said there was a change to the agenda as the Interim IT Director contract would not be 

reviewed. The motion to approve the amended agenda as requested was made by Dr. Sowada; 

second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the June 2, 2021, regular meeting as presented was made by 

Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Kelsey. Ms. Pendleton abstained and the motion carried. 

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

  

4/127



 

 

Minutes of the July 7, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

Termination and Appeals Policy, Introductory Period, Rules of Practice Governing Hearings  

 

Mr. Jones said placeholders remain on the agenda for the Termination and Appeals Policy, the 

Introductory Period Policy, and the Rules of Practice Governing Hearings.  

 

Medical Staff Bylaws 

 

Dr. Denker said the group met June 17. Information will be returned to legal counsel and the group 

will reconvene to review. Dr. Denker said the hope is to forward to the Board for review with all 

expediency. 

 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan 

 

Ms. Kara Jackson, Director of Quality, Accreditation, and Patient Safety, briefly reviewed the 

plan. Dr. Sowada said she did not see a column for deadlines. She referenced sepsis bundles and 

said we have been working on this for a couple of years. As a member of the Quality Committee, 

she said she is looking for deadlines. Ms. Jackson said we will work on them now and update the 

information. Dr. Sowada thanked the group for all the work staff have put into the plan. The motion 

to adopt the plan as written was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.   

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Election of Officers 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Governance Committee of Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Sowada, and Ms. 

Richardson developed a slate of officers. There was an opportunity to nominate from the floor 

open until June 15 and no nominations were received. Dr. Sowada said all candidates for office 

have been contacted. She presented the slate of officers for FY22: 

 President – Mr. Jones 

 Vice President – Dr. Sowada 

 Secretary – Mr. Kelsey 

 Treasurer – Mr. Tardoni 

The motion to approve the slate of officers for FY22 as presented was made by Dr. Sowada; second 

by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

Committee Assignments 

 

Mr. Jones announced the Board Committee assignments: 

 

Governance – Mr. Taylor Jones (Chair) 

Dr. Barbara Sowada 

 

Quality – Dr. Barbara Sowada (Chair) 

Mr. Ed Tardoni 

Physicians – Dr. Alicia Gray, Dr. Phil Najm 

5/127



 

 

Minutes of the July 7, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

 

Building & Grounds – Mr. Marty Kelsey (Chair) 

Mr. Ed Tardoni 

 

Finance & Audit – Mr. Ed Tardoni (Chair) 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton 

Physicians – Dr. Israel Stewart, Dr. Ben Jensen 

 

Human Resources – Dr. Barbara Sowada (Chair) 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton 

 

Joint Conference – Mr. Taylor Jones (Chair) 

Mr. Marty Kelsey 

Physicians – Dr. Jacques Denker, Dr. Alicia Gray 

 

Compliance – Mr. Marty Kelsey (Chair) 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton 

 

Executive Oversight & Compensation – Mr. Taylor Jones (Chair) 

Mr. Ed Tardoni 

 

Board Reporting Calendar 

 

Ms. Jackson said the calendar came about following recommendations from our quality consultant 

last August. The calendar contains a list of reports required to come to the Board as reports and/or 

approval to meet The Joint Commission standards and serves as oversight of the Board of the 

Hospital. Dr. Sowada noted items are recommendations for timing and may be moved as needed. 

Dr. Sowada said it is a nice job and a lot of work to get it done.  

 

FY2022 PIPS Priorities 

 

Ms. Jackson said the PIPS Committee met and used tools to help determine and select the priorities 

for FY22. A smaller workgroup and senior leaders met to take a list of 22 items down to the current 

3. Ms. Pendleton asked where we are currently sitting with percentile in patient satisfaction 

HCAHPS likelihood to recommend scores. Ms. Jackson said she will obtain the current statistics 

and include that information moving forward. Mr. Kelsey said this item is listed in New Business; 

however, he would really like to approve at this time so we can move forward with the work. The 

motion to approve the FY22 PIPS Priorities with the addition of target deadlines and addition of 

where we are currently for each of the departments involved was made by Dr. Sowada; second by 

Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

Board Policies 

 

Dr. Sowada said between January and June 2021 the Governance Committee of Ms. Richardson, 

Mr. Mathey, and Dr. Sowada met with the assistance of Ms. Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel, 

and Ms. Marianne Sanders, Director of Physician Recruitment and Retention, to update board 

bylaws. They also worked on updating board policies. The list of 18 reviewed is included in the 

6/127



 

 

Minutes of the July 7, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

meeting packet. Those highlighted in yellow on the list had no changes, highlighted in green are 

waiting to be processed, and highlighted in blue are archived. Mr. Kelsey requested the information 

with current and proposed to review side by side. Dr. Sowada created a chart of what has been 

proposed. She said Ms. Robin Fife, Clinical Administrative Assistant, created a special category 

for board policies in Policy Stat to help make them easier to find. Mr. Kelsey thanked Dr. Sowada, 

Mr. Mathey and staff for working on the policies. He suggested when this comes back, we do what 

he has typically seen and have a standard strike-thru and highlighted changes. He said that is a 

standard approach and will make it easier to see what the changes are exactly. Mr. Tardoni said he 

thinks there was a word missed in the contracts requiring board approval document in 2B. He said 

he believes item 1A-7 in maintenance of board committee minutes says motion “take” and should 

be “taken.” He said he will send an e-mail to Dr. Sowada with his suggested changes. Mr. Tardoni 

asked why the Chief Nursing Officer is listed twice in the approval area. Ms. Ann Clevenger, Chief 

Nursing Officer, said her name was listed twice because she was the proxy approval for the Board 

in Policy Stat following their approval in meetings. Dr. Sowada said a signature line has been 

added for the Board President and Secretary to “sign” their approval moving forward. Ms. 

Pendleton said the information provided has been very helpful to her as a new board member. She 

said it is very well done and very clear to understand. Mr. Jones said the Board has been working 

on developing and finetuning the information for about five years now.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson invited Ms. Kim White, Incident Commander and Director of Emergency 

Services, to provide a Covid-19 preparation and recovery Incident Command Team update. Ms. 

White said we are seeing younger patients (mid 30’s-40’s) admitted or transferred out for treatment 

we cannot provide. We are working through Incident Command and with Leadership Team on 

OSHA updated regulations. The County positivity rate dropped from over 10% to below 6%. Ms. 

White said hopefully it will continue to go down. Vaccine rates in the County have not really 

increased and remain at about 23%. She said we will continue to work with the community and 

providers to do what is needed. Ms. Pendleton asked about offering the vaccine at events. Ms. 

White said the vaccine is fragile and difficult with heat so we keep looking at all our options. We 

have had a confirmed case of the Delta variant.  

 

As a mission moment, Ms. Richardson read aloud a patient letter recognizing and thanking Dr. 

Alicia Gray. She also shared some recent OB Press Ganey patient satisfaction survey positive  

feedback. Ms. Richardson welcomed Ms. Pendleton and said we are so excited and looking 

forward to working with her. Ms. Richardson and Mr. Jones will work with her to set up her 

orientation. She invited Ms. Pendleton to reach out with any questions. Ms. Richardson provided 

a 2018-2021 Strategic Plan update in the focus areas of Patient Experience, Quality and Safety, 

Community and Growth, Workplace Experience, Financial Stewardship. We are continuing with 

person-centered care initiatives. 634 people have successfully participated in the Planetree person-

centered care experiential workshops. An excellent team is offering the communicating with 

empathy workshops. 301 people have successfully participated to-date. The Joint Commission 

triannual survey was conducted May 6 and 7. We are fully accredited for three more years. Ms. 

Richardson said we are very proud of staff for their commitment to quality. The surveyors said our 

staff was very helpful and knowledgeable. In the area of workplace experience, we thanked staff 

by bringing in food trucks the previous week to recognize their efforts and celebrate the successful 

survey. Ms. Richardson said she and Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, will meet with a 

7/127



 

 

Minutes of the July 7, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

representative from Standard & Poor’s July 19. We are also discussing refinancing our debt with 

the Board Finance and Audit Committee and our auditors. The interim audit the previous week 

went well. We are off to a great start in preparing for their onsite visit at the end of July. The senior 

leaders are working on the framework for the new strategic plan. Dr. Sowada is the Board liaison 

and individual trustees have been involved to provide input. The Wyoming Hospital Association 

annual meeting is September 7-9 in Casper. Trustees are invited. Ms. Richardson asked anyone 

interested to let her know. Ms. Richardson reminded everyone to sign in to iProtean and said it is 

an excellent resource for trustees and senior leaders. The Governance Institute is offering in-person 

and virtual conferences September 19-22 in San Diego and October 10-13 in Colorado Springs. 

Ms. Richardson said we have a lot of things going on. Covid-19 continues, and we are preparing 

for a lab Joint Commission survey, quality initiatives, patient experience efforts, Cerner electronic 

health record implementation, and ongoing construction. Ms. Richardson expressed appreciation 

for everything everyone is doing for our community. She thanked the Board and County 

Commissioners for their continued support.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Mr. Jones said the committee information is in the packet. Trustees are invited to pull out anything 

they want to address or discuss.  

 

Quality Committee 
 

Mr. Kelsey said it has been recommended by the staff that all employees get the flu vaccine. He 

said we will see what the response is.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the HR Committee did not meet and said the standard report is in the meeting 

packet 

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Capital Expenditure Requests: The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY22-3 for 

$80,510.85 for budgeted equipment and maintenance was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. 

Jones. Ms. Crystal Hamblin, Director of Cardiopulmonary Services, addressed questions and 

concerns brought forward from the Finance and Audit Committee. Following discussion, the 

motion carried. The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY22-4 for $287,897for fire 

line work was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Jones. Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director, said 

there is no renewable clause in the agreement. Mr. Tardoni said this will be submitted to the County 

for reimbursement from maintenance funds. Ms. Pendleton asked why there was only one bid and 

asked if we are in violation of state statutes. Mr. Horan and Mr. Tardoni said it was a matter of 

urgency. Mr. Kelsey said the Hospital has sole-source ability and for reasons Mr. Horan mentioned 

and given the circumstances we find ourselves in, this was the best course of action. Mr. Phillips 

said the Hospital can make an exception based on the expediency involved. Following discussion, 

the motion carried. The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY22-5 for $156,346.71 for 

17 budgeted replacement ER gurneys was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Jones. Motion 

carried.  

8/127



 

 

Minutes of the July 7, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

 

CARES Act Capital Expenditure Request 

 

The motion to ratify CARES Act capital expenditure request FY21-25 for $153,586.93 for 

furniture through the hospital was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Jones. Ms. Richardson 

said the CARES Act funds expire June 30 and that is why we worked to meet the deadlines. Ms. 

Richardson said the new furniture will be easier to clean and sanitize. Mr. Tardoni said it is 

hospital-grade material. Following discussion, the motion carried.  

 

Bad Debt:  The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $1,119,904.46 as presented by Mr. 

Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services, was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. 

Motion carried. 

 

Building & Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said he did not have anything to add to the information in the meeting packet. Mr. 

Kelsey thanked Mr. Horan for the recent tour. 

 

Foundation 

 

Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Executive Director of the Foundation, said the Board of Directors met in 

June in person for the first time in a year. The Golf Tournament is scheduled August 14 at Rolling 

Green in Green River. The Foundation formed an Annual Giving Committee. A Foundation Board 

Retreat is in the planning stage. The Waldner House continues to be busy.  

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the information is in the meeting packet.  

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said she did not have anything new to report.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Mr. Jones said the Board will discuss in executive session.  

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Mr. Jones said there is nothing new to report.  

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Contract Consent Agenda 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked if we do ads on Facebook because he sees ads for other doctors from other places 

on there every day. Ms. Deb Sutton, Marketing Director, said yes, we have quite a few services 

9/127



 

 

Minutes of the July 7, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

that are highlighted on digital platforms. We have a contract with Scorpion for search and display. 

She said she has a meeting with them the following week to discuss additional opportunities.  

 

The motion to approve the contracts contained in the consent agenda was made by Dr. Sowada; 

second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.   

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Denker reported the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) met June 22. Ms. Richardson and 

Dr. Denker presented scholarships to local students: Rikki Cozad, Delaney Gardea, Abby Hautala. 

Dr. Denker said the meeting hot topic was the quality report. Moving forward, information for all 

physician groups and levels will be reviewed at the department meetings by department chairs then 

move to MEC and then to the Board. Dr. Denker welcomed Locums Hospitalist Dr. Anil Aleti and 

Dr. Nicholas Kanaan in the Emergency Department. He welcomed Ms. Katie Moczulski, Nurse 

Practitioner, to the Sweetwater Walk-In Clinic. Dr. Denker said the Cerner electronic medical 

record is on everyone’s minds. Go Live is set for October 4. Dr. Brianne Crofts is the physician 

leader and she is doing a great job keeping everyone on-track.  

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone at the Hospital especially now with whatever the next level of Covid 

finds. He said he knows that adds stress.   

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Mr. Jones said there would be an executive session. He said the Board would take a ten-minute 

break and reconvene in executive session. The motion to go into executive session was made by 

Mr. Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.   

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 4:24 PM, the motion to leave executive session and return to regular session was made by Mr. 

Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

Mr. Jones asked if anyone wanted to change committees or have different assignments. There were 

no requests for changes. 

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 

 

The motion to approve privileges for the list of providers discussed in executive session was made 

by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from June 8, 2021  

1. Initial Appointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1year) 

 Dr. Anil Aleti, Hospitalist 

 Dr. Don Dickerson, Radiation Oncology 

 Dr. Nicholas Kanaan, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

10/127



 

 

Minutes of the July 7, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 8 

2. Initial Appointment to AHP Staff (1 years) 

 Katherine Moczulski, Family Nurse Practitioner 

3. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Raymond Bozman, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Peter Hannon, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Lauren Theilen, Maternal/Fetal Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Marcela Smid, Maternal/Fetal Medicine (U of U) 

4. Reappointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Taylor Delgado, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

5. Reappointment to AHP Staff (2 years) 

 Bonnie Collins, Licensed Clinical Social Work (SWCS) 

The motion to authorize the CEO to sign physician contracts as discussed in executive session was 

made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

The motion to approve the CEO evaluation for FY21 as discussed in executive session was made 

by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 

4:27 PM.   

 

      

         ___________________________________ 

      Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

11/127



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

1 X

2 X

3 X

4 X

5 X

6 X

7 X

8 X

9

10 X X

11 X

12 X

13 X

14 X

15 X

16 X

17 X

18 X

19 X X

20 X

1 X

2 X

1 X

2 X

1 X X X X X X X X X X X X

2 X X

3 X X X X X X X X X X X X

4 Culture of Safety Action Plan Updates X X

5 X X

6 X X X X X X X X X X X X

Patient Flow Reports

Annual Infection Control Report and Approval of Annual Infection Control Plan

Annual HR Report to Board & Annual Staffing Adequacy Report 

Ongoing PI and Patient Safety Reports (Quality Committee of the Board Report)

Monitoring of the budget and long-term capital expenditure plans

Approval of Emergency Operations Plan 

Triennial

Approval of Infection Prevention Program 

Approval of Utilization Management Plan Review

Medical Staff leader/designee reports on medical quality at timeframe defined per approved policy (at least twice per 
fiscal yr or calender yr.  Includes periodic reports of the medical staff evaluation of patient care services for 
every patient care location of the organization

Ongoing

Chief Nursing Reports

Credentialing and Privileging Reports

Annual Environment of Care Report and Approval of EOC Plans

Annual Emergency Operations Plan Evaluation 

Contracted Services Evaluation

MHSC Board of Trustees Reporting Calendar

CEO Evaluation

Quality Workshop of the Board 

Biannual

CMS Star Rating Report 

Annual

Review of the Strategic Plan 

Approval of Scopes of Services 

Self-evaluation of Board Members with analysis

Annual approval of the Operating Budget and when needed, the long-term capital expenditure plan

External audit by an independent public accountant

Annual PI/Patient Safety/Risk Management Report; Annual Approval of PIPS Plan (to include approval of frequency 
and detail of data collection); Annual Approval of PI Priorities and the number of distinct improvement projects to be 
conducted annually; Proactive Risk Assessment 

Dialysis QAPI Program/Plan

Annual Conflict of Interest Form Signed

Approval of Patient Safety Plan 

Approval of Risk Management Plan 

Culture of Safety Survey Results 

Approval of the Strategic Plan

YEAR: 2021

12/127



Separator Page

BOARD AGENDA

13/127



14/127



15/127



16/127



17/127



18/127



Separator Page

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

19/127



20/127



21/127



22/127



23/127



Separator Page

EMAIL COMMUNICATIONS

24/127



25/127



26/127



27/127



28/127



Separator Page

CEO EVALUATION

29/127



30/127



31/127



32/127



33/127



34/127



35/127



36/127



Separator Page

ELECTION OF OFFICERS

37/127



38/127



39/127



40/127



41/127



Separator Page

INVESTMENT POLICY

42/127



43/127



44/127



45/127



46/127



47/127



48/127



49/127



50/127



51/127



52/127



Separator Page

SPENDING AUTHORITY

53/127



COPY

Current Status: Active PolicyStat ID: 9935443 

Approved: 06/2021 
Review Due: 06/2024 
Document Area: Board of Trustees 
Reg. Standards: 

BOT - Spending Authority and Matrix 

 Board of Trustees 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE: 

TEXT: 
I. Policy 

A. Statutory authority for the purchase of goods and services for MHSC resides with its Board of 
Trustees. 

B. This policy delegates spending authority for items less than $25,000 to the Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO) and/or the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). 

C. Through the Spending Authority Matrix, the policy also sets forth guidelines for the procurement of 
goods and services that are equal to or greater than $25,000. 

II. Definitions 

A. PhysiciansProviders are the threetwo (32) groups of practitioners listed in the MHSC Medical Staff 
Bylaws (Physicians, Licensed Independent Practitioners, and Allied Health Professionals and Non-
Physician Providers). 

B. Purchased Services are any service contracted for and performed by a third party rather that a 
hospital's in-house staff. 

C. Capital Purchases are buildings and equipment that > $2,000 and a life of at least one year. 

D. Real Estate is property consisting of land and the buildings on it. 

E. Legal Settlements are the resolutions of disputed matters between MHSC and a person or entity 
without court actiongoing to trial. 

III. Procedure 

theThe purpose of this policy is to establish rules and guidelines with respect to spending authority for 
employees of memorialMemorial Hospital of Sweetwater countyCounty (MHSC). The dollar amount and nature 
of the expenditure ultimately determines the level of approval required. 

BOT - Spending Authority and Matrix. Retrieved 07/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
9935443/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 4

54/127

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



COPY

A. The rules and guidelines of the Spending Authority Matrix shall be followed in delegating spending 
authority. 

Type of 
Transaction 

Legal 
Review 

Leader 
Approval 

Board 
Approval 

Commissioner 
Approval 

Authorized 
Signature 

Physicians 

Providers 

Acquisition of 
Practice 

Yes CEO Yes No CEO 

Employment > 
$100,000 

Yes CEO Yes No CEO 

Consulting 
Agreement > 
$25,000 

Yes CEO Yes No CEO 

Purchased 
Services 

PO or check 
requests up to 
$1,000 

No Dept. 
Director 

No No CEO, 
CFO 

PO or check 
requests up to 
$2,500 

No Senior 
Leader 

No No CEO, 
CFO 

PO or check 
requests up to 
$25,000 

No CFO No No CEO, 
CFO 

PO or check 
requests > $25,000 

No CEO, 
CFO 

No No CEO, 
CFO 

Management 
agreements up to 
$25,000 

Yes CEO, 
CFO 

No No CEO, 
CFO 

Management 
agreements > 
$25,000 

Yes CEO, 
CFO 

Yes No CEO, 
CFO 

Consulting 
agreements up to 
$25,000 

Yes CEO, 
CFO 

No No CEO, 
CFO 

Medical services 
up to $25,000 

Yes CEO, 
CFO 

No No CEO, 
CFO 

Medical services > 
$25,000 

Yes CEO, 
CFO 

Yes No CEO, 
CFO 

Service contracts 
up to $25,000 

Yes Dept. 
Director 

No No CEO, 
CFO 

BOT - Spending Authority and Matrix. Retrieved 07/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
9935443/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 4

55/127



COPY

Type of 
Transaction 

Legal 
Review 

Leader 
Approval 

Board 
Approval 

Commissioner 
Approval 

Authorized 
Signature 

Service contracts > 
$25,000 

Yes CEO, 
CFO 

YesNo No CEO, 
CFO 

Capital Purchase 

Unbudgeted items 
up to $10,000 

No Dept. 
Director 

No No CEO, 
CFO 

Budgeted items up 
to $10,000 

No CEO, 
CFO 

No No CEO, 
CFO 

Budgeted items up 
to $25,000 

Yes CEO, 
CFO 

No No CEO, 
CFO 

Budgeted items >
$25,000 

Yes CEO, 
CFO 

Yes No CEO, 
CFO 

Real Estate 

Real estate 
acquisitions 

Yes CEO, 
CFO 

Yes Yes CEO 

Real estate leases 
up to $5,000 per 
month 

Yes CEO, 
CFO 

Yes No CEO, 
CFO 

Real estate leases 
> $5,000 per 
month 

Yes CEO, 
CFO 

Yes No CEO, 
CFO 

Leases 

Leases, as leasee 
up to $2,000 per 
monthLeases 

Yes CEO, 
CFO 

Yes No Yes CEO, 
CFO 

Leases, as leasor 
> $2,000 per 
month 

Yes CEO, 
CFO 

Yes No CEO, 
CFO 

Legal Settlements 

w/insurance up to 
$25,000 

Yes CEO NoYes No CEO 

w/insurance > 
$25,000 

Yes CEO Yes No CEO 

B. Departments must purchase goods and services as economically as possible according to the 
specified standards of quality and service while giving responsible suppliers fair consideration. 

C. Whenever appropriate, purchased goods and services shall occur through a competitive bid process 
that is publicly accountable, ethical, fair, and transparent. 

1. Items costing less than $2,000 do not require competitive quotes or put ot for bid, 

2. Items costing between $2,000 and $10,000 require at least three competitive quotes. 

BOT - Spending Authority and Matrix. Retrieved 07/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
9935443/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 4

56/127



COPY

3. Items costing more than $10,000 must be put out for bid. 

D. There may be occasions when a "sole source" provider is necessary, or highly desirable, which 
precludes the need for a competitive bid. 

E. Regardless of the situation, an individual cannot delegate authority down to another employee. 
Authority can only be delegated up to the individual's supervisor or Chief Officer. 

F. paymentPayment will be processed only for items purchased according to the above Matrix. 

G. All contracts with physiciansProviders must be signed by both the CEO and the CFO and approved 
by the Board of Trustees. 

H. All legal settlements will go through insurance, including those below the deductible amount.Any 
medical malpractice settlements, regardless of the amount, will go through professional liability 
insurance, and will be approved by the Board. 

I. Except for the purchases that require the CEO's signature, either the CEO or the CFO may sign for 
all other expenses. 

J. All designated signers for payment must complete a signature card; the original will be kept on file at 
the local financial institution(s) and a copy will be kept on file in the Finance Department. 

K. Payment for goods and services shall be made via checks drawn against memorial Hospital of 
Sweetwater County demand deposit accounts, or electronic funds transfer, as authorized by the 
hospital administration and its Board of Trustees. 

L. In accordance with Hospital policy, the Hospital is responsible for the maintenance and storage of all 
contracts associated with these purchases. 

Board of Trustees Approval: 10/17 : / (Pres. MatheyJones, Sec. 
Kelsey) 

Attachments 

Cover Check List.docx 

Approval Signatures 

Approver Date 

Irene Richardson: CEO 06/2021 

Suzan Campbell: General Legal Counsel 06/2021 

Original adoption: May 4, 2011 

BOT - Spending Authority and Matrix. Retrieved 07/2021. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
9935443/. Copyright © 2021 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 4

57/127



58/127



59/127



60/127



61/127



Separator Page

DUTY TO DISCLOSE

62/127



63/127



64/127



65/127



66/127



67/127



68/127



Separator Page

POLICIES WITH NO CHANGES

69/127



70/127



71/127



72/127



73/127



74/127



75/127



76/127



77/127



78/127



79/127



80/127



81/127



82/127



83/127



84/127



85/127



Memo 

To: Board 

From Barbara Sowada 

Re: Proposed Continuing Education Plan for FY 22 

Date: July 29, 2021 

 

On behalf of the Governance Committee, attached is the proposed plan for our 

continuing education program for FY 22. As previously agreed on, the focus of the 

plan is quality. 

You’ll note the plan is included in the New Business section of agenda. Although 

typically new business is discussed one month and voted on the next month, 

we’re hoping to condense discussion, modifications (if any), and approval into this 

meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

### 

 

 

86/127



Board Continuing Education Program 

Quality 

 

The items below are simply a suggested starting place. 

1. Plan 12-month program with emphasis on quality. 

2. Method 

a. iProtean modules to be viewed independently with discussion at 

monthly Board meeting 

b. Time allotted for discussion: 10, 15, or 20 minutes  TBD dependent 

on nature of module 

c. Facilitated discussion: yes or no non-facilitated 

d. Number of modules per year: 12, 6, 4, or 3 start with 6 (every other 

month) adjust up or down as needed 

e. Is discussion limited to Board members, or include senior leadership 

Board to keep the discussion at Board level to education Board to 

help with oversight and direction and to prevent blurring lines 

between leadership and governance 

3. Board input into determining modules or left to Governing Committee 

a. 19 modules to chose from 

4. Suggested modules as starting point 

a. Overview of Quality 

b. Driving a culture of quality 

c. New payment systems 

d. Credentialing 

e. Physician leadership 

f. Physicians and the new healthcare business model 

5. Start Date September Board meeting? 

87/127



To: Board of Trustees 

From: Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

Re: Chair’s Report … July meeting 

Date: July 21, 2021 

 

Welcome. The Committee welcomed its new members: Ed Tardoni, Dr. Phillip Najm, and Dr. 

Alicia Gray. Based on Peter Drucker’s leadership maxim, “The role of the leader is to maximize 

others’ strengths and minimize their weaknesses” and because quality is a “team sport,” 

members introduced themselves by stating the strength they bring to the committee. 

 

The Flu Vaccination Program policy generated much discussion. Briefly, discussion showed 

the lack of clear understanding of the intent of the policy by hospital leadership. Staff will clarify 

intent of policy before bringing it back to Quality Committee. It’s anticipated this policy will also 

go to HR Committee before it is ready to go to the Board. The ask of the hospital is that the 

board is supportive of the eventual policy. 

 

Accreditation, Surveys, etc.  The hospital has been accredited by the TJC for another 3 years. 

The pharmacy was recently successful in its survey by Wyoming State Board of Pharmacy. The 

hospital was accredited, with provisional status, as a Level III trauma center. The Oncology 

Clinic has been approved for clinical trials; trials will start once training has been completed.  

 

Board Quality workshop is being planned for January, 2022. Kara will form an ad hoc 

committee that includes one board member to participate in the planning. This year’s Board 

education program will focus on quality and will use iProtean as the resource. Ten minutes of 

each board meeting will be given to review of this material. All members of Quality Committee 

will be invited to participate. 

 

Patient Experience Scores. Dr. Clevenger reported St. John’s Hospital’s suggestions for 

improving our HCAHPS scores. Took them 5 years to see a cultural change and consistent 

patient experience data. Having a foundation such as PlaneTree is beneficial. Important to align 

mission, vision, and values; create a seamless delivery of care, include staff in decision making 

and service recovery. Other suggestions include consistent messaging, leadership rounds, staff 

training, and celebration of “wins.” 

The plethora of quality metrics and their summary reports, along with the minutes of the July 

meeting, are part of the August Board packet. 

88/127



 

  Page 1 of 4 

Confidential   7/29/2021 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

July 21, 2021 

 
 

Present:  Voting Members: Dr. Barbara Sowada (Quality Board Chair), Kara Jackson (Quality 

Director), Dr. Kari Quickenden (CCO), Dr. Ann Marie Clevenger (CNO), Dr. Melinda 

Poyer (CMO), Ed Tardoni (Quality Board Member), Dr. Alicia Gray, Dr. Phillip Najm, 

Irene Richardson (CEO), 

 

Non-voting Members:  Noreen Hove, Karali Plonsky, Corey Worden, Valerie Boggs, 

 

Guests: Taylor Jones (Board of Trustees Chair), Kandi Pendleton (Board of Trustee) 

 

Absent/Excused:  Voting Members:  Tami Love (CFO), Leslie Taylor (Clinic Director),  

  

Non-voting Members: Cindy Nelson, Kalpana Pokhrel,  

 

Chair:   Dr. Barbara Sowada  

 

 

Approval of Agenda & Minutes 

Dr. Sowada called the Meeting to order at 8:15 am. Dr. Sowada welcomed our new Board 

member to the committee – Ed Tardoni and our new Provider members – Dr. Alicia Gray and Dr. 

Phillip Najm. 

 

The Quality Agenda was presented for approval, Dr. Poyer motioned to approve, Ms. 

Richardson seconded. Motion was approved.  

 

Dr. Sowada requested circling back on introductions and to follow an adage by Peter Drucker, 

“A leader should help maximize others strengths and make their weaknesses irrelevant”, and 

asked everyone to list the skills and strengths each member of the Quality Committee brings to 

the team. Each member outlined their strengths, with Dr. Sowada noting what a wide variety of 

skills and strengths our committee had – a very complete palate. 

 

Dr. Sowada presented the June 22, 2021 Minutes for approval.  Dr. Poyer motioned to approve, 

Dr. Quickenden seconded. Motion was approved. 

 

Old Business 

Dr. Quickenden noted we continue work on our ESC compliance, but we did receive our 

Certificate of Accreditation from The Joint Commission in early July, so we are accredited for 

the next 3 years. We continue to work on survey readiness as we await our Joint Commission Lab 

Survey, which we expect as early as August. We also are looking at items that were not actually 

sited, but are opportunities for improvement. We will be putting a plan together to outline those 

non-cited findings.  

 

Dr. Poyer presented the Annual Influenza Vaccine Program and the changes to the mandatory 

vaccination. Previously employees could decline with the understanding they would need to 

wear a mask through flu season. But with COVID all are wearing masks and that is no longer a 

deterrent. Going forward they will be required to have a flu vaccine (except those with medical 

 

89/127



 

  Page 2 of 4 

Confidential   7/29/2021 

or religious exemptions) or will be required to take PTO for time off. Dr. Poyer motioned to 

recommend approval of Annual Influenza Vaccine Program as presented and it be taken to 

Board for final approval and support.  Discussion ensued that showed not all understood the 

intent of the standard. Dr. Poyer withdrew her motion and will be taking back to committees for 

clarification and will bring back next month. 

 

New Business 

Dr. Quickenden reported on CMS Validation of Outpatient Quality Reporting (OQR) measures. 

We were selected to provide charts for validation (comparison) of extraction – to ensure we are 

extracting the same as how CMS would. They require we match at least 75% - we met 100% for 

all 3 quarters. Dr. Sowada noted that this tells us we can trust our data. 

 

Dr. Quickenden reported that the Wyoming State Board of Pharmacy survey occurred on June 

10th. They were here to inspect our new sterile compounding room, but while they were here 

they performed their routine pharmacy inspection. We passed, with a few recommendations 

related to training records and documentation. They are expected back in about 1 year. 

 

Dr. Clevenger stated the Trauma Accreditation Survey was performed on June 30th, the 

preliminary report shared on site was that the Trauma Program would receive a continued area 

trauma hospital designation, but will have a provisional 1-year stipulation. The follow-up required 

to have that provisional removed is improved performance improvement initiatives. The 3 

surveyors that were here offered to help Tiffany Uranker-Webb, Trauma Coordinator with the 

identification, tracking and goals for the initiatives. 

 

Ms. Jackson reported that the Cancer Center had some great updates for their Association for 

Clinical Oncology (ASCO) and Quality Oncology Practice Initiative (QOPI) certification track – 

they have competed round one of ASCO chart abstractions and scored 80%, which is pretty 

good. The chart abstractions they are doing will drive their Performance Improvement (PI) plans. 

They will be reviewed again in a year, putting them on track to be QOPI certified.  Clinical trials 

have been approved by the Central Institutional Review Board (CIRB), they have some 

additional training this Monday, then should be good to go for enrolling patients in clinical trials. 

They were also approved by the Wyoming Cancer Program for a grant for Cancer survivorship 

and wellness that begins in August, with a kick off party next week. They can then begin 

handing out vouchers to patients to support their wellness, with activities like Rec Center 

admission and massages. 

 

Ms. Jackson further reported on the PIPS priorities. Ms. Jackson stated a slight reorganization of 

the graph occurred to reduce columns, with the addition of an AIM statement and SMART 

objective. Dr. Sowada requested an email with PIPS priority attached be sent out for a more 

thorough review by committee, with the plan to bring back to committee next month for 

approval, before taking to Board for approval. Dr. Quickenden requested any questions or 

corrections about the document be addressed prior to the next meeting, so the document can 

be ready for approval by the Quality Committee in August. 

 

Ms. Jackson presented the planning for the Quality Workshop of the Board, which normally 

occurs in October, but with all the work happening with Synergi (new Quality Management 

system replacing MIDAS) and Cerner implementation the recommendation is to move the 

workshop to January, with the Finance workshop moved to February. Dr. Sowada suggested a 

small task force that includes one Board member to help organize the workshop. 

90/127



 

  Page 3 of 4 

Confidential   7/29/2021 

 

Medical Staff Update 

Dr. Poyer gave the Medical Staff update: from the Quality standpoint the heads of each 

department have been assigned their quality measures and they will be looking for 

opportunities for improvement and will be in communication with “herself”, other medical 

providers and the nursing staff involved in those measure, and will be reporting back each 

month, that she will then bring to MEC.  

 

As for HCAHPS, they continue to do “Commit to Sit” and look for opportunities for improvement 

to continue to improve our HCAHPS scores. The pandemic with the Brazilian and Delta variant 

has not gone away, we have had problems getting patients out to tertiary facilities because 

they full, which decreases some of our measures for satisfaction. The complexity of the patients 

we are keeping has increased. Our community positivity rate is still above 5%, which means we 

have mandatory screening for employees that are not vaccinated. 

 

Informational Items for Review/Discussion 

Dr. Sowada presented the Informational Items for Review/Discussion, noting for the new 

members this is a “consent agenda”, where items can be reviewed or pulled out for discussion. 

Dr. Sowada requested pulling out PIPS Star Rating, Patient Safety and Risk Dashboard.  

 PIPS Star Rating – question “We appear 2 months behind in extraction data – is that due 

to the time it takes for extraction?”. Ms. Jackson acknowledged that was correct.  

o Dr. Sowada also note that sometimes percentile and percentage are both used. 

Ms. Jackson stated they had just discussed this in PIPS and would be moving to 

percentage.  

o OP 18b has no descriptor. Ms. Jackson stated this is similar to ED 2B – Admit 

Decision Time to ED Departure Time, but that this one was for Outpatient for the 

time they arrived in the ED to the time they are discharged from the ED.   

o OP-8, what is our barrier for concurrent tracking? Dr. Quickenden stated the issue is 

this is claims based and that we don’t always know it physical therapy or 

chiropractic measures were provided prior to MRI. Dr. Matti will be addressing this 

at General Medical Staff meeting tonight. Cerner will help – they have 

Appropriate Use Criteria (AUC) built in – if a provider orders an MRI it will ask 

specific questions, i.e. have they had physical therapy or chiropractic care? 

 Safety Accreditation – Did any of these safety events trigger a Root Cause Analysis 

(RCA)? Ms. Jackson stated Yes – 2 RCAs have recently been completed, they are still 

working on follow up items and will plan to bring to Quality in August or September. 

 Other Standards Dashboard – Unexpected complications for newborns – is this what Dr. 

Ryan will be looking at for opportunities for improvement? Dr. Quickenden 

acknowledged – yes. 

 OP Ambulatory Surgery – is “Care Provider” the “physician”? Ms. Jackson stated – Yes, 

that is the physician. 

Dr. Sowada queried Dr. Quickenden and Ms. Jackson on how the hospital as a team is 

addressing and meeting their Quality measures. Dr. Quickenden and Ms. Jackson both agreed 

that the teams are working well and great improvements have been seen. 

 

Dr. Sowada requested that Dr. Clevenger reiterate her learnings from other CNOs, that attaining 

quality measures in patient experience “is a long journey not a sprint”.  Dr. Clevenger reached 

out to St. John’s in Jackson and Star Valley. Jackson has already answered back and offered 

their services and have already had 3 discussions on the topics pertaining to issues and 

91/127



 

  Page 4 of 4 

Confidential   7/29/2021 

measures each addressed. They noted it has taken them a full 5 years to see a big impact. They 

have used many of the same initiatives as us, and stated we needed to pick a source and stick 

with it. Dr. Clevenger stated Cindy Nelson, Executive Administrative Assistant has done a great 

job with this.  

 

From the Director – bimonthly 

Nothing reported this month. 

 

Mission Moment 

Dr. Sowada requested we close the meeting with a Mission moment. Ms. Richardson began the 

conversation by commending the staff and the Quality Team for the Excellent job they are 

doing! Ms. Richardson then relayed an incident between Marianne Sanders and a patient. The 

patient asked if we were considering recruiting a Rheumatologist. Ms. Sanders stated she would 

look into it or see if we could get services from the  U of U. Ms. Sanders also noted that at the 

beginning of the conversation the patient was quite upset, because of the difficulties she had in 

seeing a Rheumatologist in Utah, and that even if we had one here the patient had difficulties 

just walking into the building. Ms. Sanders told the patient she would give her her personal 

phone number and would help her in. The patient’s entire disposition changed, she was 

surprised and pleased by Ms. Sanders offer. Ms. Sanders stated she remember how hard it was 

for her parents when they came to the hospital and would be happy to do this for the patient. 

The end of the conversation found the patient very happy and complimentary of the hospital 

and its staff. 

 
Meeting Adjourned   The meeting adjourned at 9:51am 

 

Next Meeting    August 25, 2021 at 08:15 am via ZOOM. 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

92/127



To: Board of Trustees 

From: Barbara J. Sowada, Chair 

Re: Human Resources Committee Meeting 

Date: July 19, 2021 

 

The Human Resources Committee met July 19th from 3:00 to 4:00 pm by Zoom. Kandi 

Pendleton was welcomed. Committee members and HR staff introduced themselves by 

answering the questions, “How long have you worked in health care and what drew you to 

health care”? 

 

The HR Charter was reviewed and explained. It was noted that according to the Charter, these 

two reports should be included in the monthly data packet: 1) Contract Statistics by Position 

and 2) Unexpected Sick leave rates and Workers Compensation Claims. Both reports will be 

included in the future packets. 

 

Monthly data was reviewed and explained. Turnover rate is rising. Total separations for 

calendar year 2020 were 67 employees; year to date for 2021 separations are 58. Rising 

turnover rate is consistent with national data. Staff believe that voluntary separations are 

attributed to Covid-19, people leaving the area, and finding local health care jobs that offer 

9:00 am to 5:00 pm, M-F employment. 

 

Open Positions was reviewed and explained. Laboratory staff and ultrasound technicians 

continue to be difficult to recruit. More open nursing positions than previous, which are also 

becoming difficult to fill. Use of agency/traveler personnel has increased; partially because of 

Covid-19 staff requirements and partially because of recruiting challenges. Discussion ensued 

regarding the need to get creative regarding pay, sign on bonuses, “growing our own,” and 

other incentives to recruit and retain our workforce.  

 

Process regarding HR policies was reviewed and explained. 

 

For more detail, see the reports and minutes of this meeting which are included in the August 

Board packet. 

 

Next HR meeting will be August 16th. 

 

 

93/127



94/127



95/127



96/127



97/127



98/127



99/127



100/127



101/127



102/127



103/127



104/127



105/127



106/127



107/127



108/127



109/127



110/127



111/127



112/127



113/127



114/127



115/127



116/127



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…Buildings and Grounds Committee…July, 2021 
Date:  July 28, 2021 
 
Regarding the Central Plant Expansion project…nothing to report since the special meeting with 
the Hospital’s legal counsel except that the controls contractor, Harris, has been paid. 
 
Regarding the HVAC/UVG Projects…very good progress. The HVAC shutdown was a success. 
There are some remaining tasks to be completed, but the work is going well. 
 
Regarding the Chemo Mixing Room…discussion focused on the reduction of County funds 
(reduced by $131,000). There may be enough funds to work on this project as it was decided to 
postpone the replacement Powerhouse Roof. This project will be re-visited in the future. 
 
Regarding the Pharmacy Compounding Room…the project is complete. 
 
Regarding the renovation of Dr. Sulentich’s Office…we are awaiting final approval of the plans. 
Asbestos testing still has to be done. Every effort will be made to minimize the disruption to the 
doctor’s practice. 
 
Regarding the Medical Imaging Renovation project…we are awaiting approval from the state so 
the project can proceed. 
 
Regarding the S-1 Unit project…work will begin assembling the new unit very soon. 
 
Regarding the Bulk Oxygen project…still awaiting plans from Airgas. There will be a new, smaller 
tank to take the place of all the cylinders currently located at the site. 
 
Regarding the Building Automation System project…no progress as all the involved contractors 
are involved in other projects. 
 
Regarding the Main Sprinkler Line project…High Desert Construction is doing this work and has 
ordered the needed materials. There is rather long lead time for delivery. DEQ approval is 
needed as well. 
 
Regarding the tabled projects…nothing new to report. Need to discuss the shared retaining wall 
at the Waldner House with legal counsel. 
 
Discussed briefly the Special Purpose Tax projects. Election is set for November, 2022. Also 
discussed the additional $500M of COVID relief funds…will know more later. 

117/127



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BUILDING & GROUNDS COMMITTEE AGENDA 

Tuesday ~ July 20, 2021  3:30 p.m.  Zoom teleconference   

   

Voting Board Committee Members:     Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chairman  

Ed Tardoni, Trustee 

 

Voting Staff Committee Members:   Irene Richardson, CEO 

Tami Love, CFO 

Jim Horan, Director of Facilities 

 

Non-voting Members:     Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

Stevie Nosich, Safety Coordinator 

 

Guests:      Jake Blevins – ST&B Engineering 

Will Wheatley – PlanOne Architects 

Jeff Smith - County Commissioner Liaison 

 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order      Marty Kelsey 

2. Approve Agenda      Marty Kelsey 

3. Approve Minutes – June 15, 2021    Marty Kelsey 

4. Maintenance Metrics      Jim Horan 

a. Work orders  

b. Department overtime  

c. Budget variance 

 

5. Old Business        

a. Project Review       

i. Central Plant expansion    Jake Blevins/Gerry Johnston 

ii. HVAC/UVG projects    Jake Blevins     

iii. Medical Imaging renovation   Will Wheatley/Jake Blevins/Gerry 

Johnston 

iv. S1 Unit      Jake Blevins 

v. Chemo Mixing room    Jim Horan 

vi. Pharmacy Compounding room   Gerry Johnston 

118/127



vii. Dr. Sulentich Office    Will Wheatley 

viii. Bulk Oxygen     Jim Horan 

ix. Building automation system   Jim Horan 

x. Main sprinkler line    Jim Horan 

b. Tabled projects      Jim Horan 

i. Replacement roofing for power house  

ii. OB Bathtubs to Showers 

iii. Foundation Waldner House retaining wall 

   

6. New Business -  None     

 

7. Next meeting schedule      Marty Kelsey 

a. August 17, 2021 Classroom 1 or Zoom; 3:30P – 4:30P 

 

8. Adjournment       Marty Kelsey 

 

 

 

 

 

119/127



 
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 
July 20, 2021 

 
 
The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on July 20, 2021, at 3:30 
PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 
 
In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

   Mr. Jake Blevins, ST&B Engineering 

    

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 
 
Mr. Kelsey asked to amend the agenda to include discussion of the special purpose tax and possible 
projects.  Ms. Richardson made a motion to approve the agenda with this addition.  Mr. Tardoni 
seconded; motion passed. 
 
Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the June 15, 2021 meeting. Ms. Love 
made a motion to approve the minutes.  Mr. Kelsey seconded; motion passed.  Mr. Tardoni and 
Ms. Richardson abstained as they were not in attendance. 
 

Maintenance Metrics 

 
Mr. Horan said the maintenance metrics are holding consistent.  He said there will be some 
overtime with the construction shutdowns and the need for overnight labor.  
  

 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Central Plant Expansion 
 
Mr. Blevins followed up with the controls vendor and they had received their payment from the 
general contractor as a result of our final payment per our legal conversation last week.  Mr. Horan 
said there isn’t anything else to add since the legal meeting.  
 
 HVAC/UVG Projects 
 
Mr. Horan said most of this project is completed except for the new unit supplying air to Imaging 
and Surgery.  The unit is partially supplying air but had not had the UVG lights installed yet.  He 
said we had the HVAC shutdown last weekend and it was successful.  There is some work to be 
done to tie in the new unit in the basement.  
 
Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room  
 
Mr. Horan said there is nothing new to report.  Everyone has been focused on other projects so we 
have not moved forward on this yet.  Mr. Kelsey asked what the reduction was in the County 

120/127



 

 
Minutes of the July 20, 2021 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

maintenance fund for the new budget year.  We have agreed we would postpone the new roof for 
the powerhouse to make up for the reduction.  Ms. Love said the original was $1.069MM and the 
revised was $938,000.  Ms. Richardson said we had anticipated this reduction so we pushed for a 
lot of smaller deferred projects to be completed at the end of fiscal year 2021.   Mr. Kelsey said 
we should have a better feel for the projects by the next meeting but he does feel the chemo mixing 
room should be a priority for the new year. 
 
Pharmacy Compounding Room  
 
Mr. Johnston said this project is complete.  He confirmed that all approvals have been received. 
  
Dr. Sulentich Office  
 
Mr. Horan said the plans for this space have been turned into the State for final approval after 
completion of asbestos testing.  He said we had a meeting there was discussion on the timing of 
the project.  Dr. Sulentich was concerned about the length of the project as it will disrupt his office 
schedule.  Mr. Wheatley said the project would not start until all material was is staged and in the 
hands of the contractor. 
 
Medical Imaging Renovation 
 
Mr. Johnston said they are waiting on a response from the State for final approval to move forward 
with this phase of the project. 
   
S1 Unit 
 
Mr. Johnston said they will start piecing that unit together now that the other unit is complete.  Mr. 
Tardoni asked about the temporary unit in front of the hospital and if the new unit will be installed 
in the same place.  Mr. Johnston said that is correct. 
 
Bulk Oxygen 
 
Mr. Kelsey asked if we had received any plans for the construction yet.  Mr. Horan said there has 
been dialogue between Airgas and the engineer.  There needs to be some changes due to the turning 
radius needed for the truck that fills the oxygen tank.  We hope to have the plans by the meeting 
next month for review.  Mr. Tardoni asked about the replacement tank.  Mr. Horan said he was 
unsure of the new tank but we did find out, due to our volumes, we will need to have a smaller 
liquid tank instead of our cylinder inventory.  Mr. Kelsey said it would be nice to get the 
landscaping cleaned up with this project. 
 
Building Automation System 
 
Mr. Horan said there has been a lot of talk.  The involved parties are the same ones involved in the 
HVAC project so hours have been limited to start this project with Vaughn’s and Harris.  
 
 
 
 

121/127



 

 
Minutes of the July 20, 2021 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

 
Main Sprinkler Line 
 
Mr. Horan said since the approval at the Board meeting, the engineers have been in touch about 
layout and where the line ended with the upgrade to the MOB.  High Desert is procuring the piping 
and the lead time for the DEQ is about 6-8 weeks.  They are hoping to have material in place in 
time for the DEQ approval.  Western Engineers is compiling the plan for DEQ.  Mr. Kelsey said 
the supply chain is strained due to COVID.  Mr. Tardoni asked if there is a jockey pump on the 
fire line.  Mr. Johnston said we do have one inside and we should be able to isolate the sprinklers 
during the replacement. 
 
Tabled Projects   
 
There are no new updates on the remaining tabled projects as most are on hold for the spring 
weather and new budget year. With the budget reduction from the County, we will prioritize these 
projects.  Mr. Kelsey asked about the retaining wall. Mr. Horan will speak to the neighbor 
regarding this project and the possibility of it being postponed.  He summarized this project for 
the new members and the existing shared wall.  He will bring pictures of the wall and property line 
to the next meeting.  There was some concern of sharing the wall with a private property.  Ms. 
Richardson said she should bring Mr. Geoff Philips into this discussion. 
 

 Replacement Roofing for Power House  

 Foundation Waldner House Wall  

 OB Bathtubs to Showers  

 
New Business 

 
Special Purpose Tax projects 
 
Ms. Richardson said Mr. Jeff Smith, our commissioner liaison said the SPT would be for 
November 2022.  The special purpose tax being discussed now is for emergency services and 
economic development.  Mr. Tardoni said this will give us a feel for the public’s appetite for 
additional tax.  There was discussion on the need for street repairs and other infrastructure projects 
in Green River and Rock Springs.  Ms. Richardson shared some information from the 
Commissioner meeting.   
 
Mr. Tardoni said the Governor and State have received and additional $500M of which 23% will 
go to healthcare.  We should keep additional projects in mind as they will probably go through 
State Land and Investment Board (SLIB) again.   
 
Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. Richardson to keep the committee updated as when potential projects should 
be discussed at this meeting. 
 
The next meeting will be held August 17 at 3:30 p.m.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 4:19 p.m.  
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

122/127



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s  Report…Compliance Committee Update 
Date:  July 28, 2021 
 
This week, Kari, Kara, Kandi and I met to discuss the status of Compliance. Moreover, I have 
been in e-mail communications with Suzan regarding this subject. 
 
As you know, Compliance is in a state of transition…new employees with roles in the 
program…some roles to yet be fully determined. 
 
Suzan Campbell has been chosen by the Hospital as the Hospital’s Compliance Officer. It 
appears that the auditing function will be carried by Quality staff. 
 
There have been some staff meetings recently to flesh out how Compliance should work at 
MHSC. Being we are a small hospital, it is difficult to establish the Compliance function as totally 
independent of all other MHSC staff as Clay envisioned when he presented a draft Compliance 
Plan to the Board in 2018. So, attempts are being made to find a “line-of-best-fit” given our 
limited resources. I think it is great the Compliance Officer reports directly to the CEO. This is 
ideal. 
 
Several questions remain such as: Who determines what areas of the Hospital area audited and 
when? (2) Who determines the scope of these audits? (3) To whom do the auditors report and 
to whom are written audit findings presented? (4) Where does risk management fit into the 
picture? (5) How are conflict of interest issues resolved? 
 
The Hospital has a Compliance Plan that was approved by the Board in December, 2018. The 
Policystat document of the Compliance Plan (Policystat 7971537), with small tweaks from the 
Board-approved version, shows it was approved by Senior Staff and MEC in July, 2020. 
Interesting! When the revisions to this plan are complete, the Board will need to approve it. 
 
There will not be a Compliance Committee meeting until September at the earliest. Staff still 
has several things to work out before the Committee can properly function. 
 
More later as information becomes available. 
 
 

123/127



 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Governance Committee Meeting 

July 29, 2021 

Zoom Meeting 

 

Voting Members Present: Taylor Jones, Irene Richardson, and Barbara Sowada 

 

Call Meeting to Order 

 

Taylor Jones called meeting to order at 12:30 pm. 

 

Discussion 

Agenda was created during the meeting. 

Minutes No minutes to be approved 

New Business 

1. Board Continuing Education Program. 

a.  Suggested program discussed. Plan is attached and items in red reflect Committee’s 

recommendation for implementation of plan. Items in red are reflect Committee’s suggestion. 

b. For the Board’s input and approval, the attached plan will be discussed in the new business 

section of the August Board agenda. 

2. Discussed standing meeting date, no decision made.  

Old Business: None 

 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:45 pm. 

Next meeting is September 3rd at 9:00 am by Zoom. 

Submitted by Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

 

124/127



125/127



126/127



127/127


	Agenda - August 4 2021 Mtg
	Our Mission and Vision
	Minutes
	Board Reporting Calendar
	BOT - Board Agenda - BOT -revisions
	BOT - Board Agenda - BOT - Board Agenda
	BOT - Conflict of Interest Policy - BOT -revisions
	BOT - Conflict of Interest Policy - BOT - Conflict of Interest Policy
	BOT - EMAIL COMMUNICATIONS - BOT - revisions
	BOT - EMAIL COMMUNICATIONS - BOT - EMAIL COMMUNICATIONS
	BOT - CEO Evaluation Principles and Procedure - revisions
	BOT - CEO Evaluation Principles and Procedure - BOT - CEO Evaluation Principles and Procedure
	BOT - Election of Officers Guidelines - BOT - Revisions
	BOT - Election of Officers Guidelines - BOT - Election of Officers Guidelines
	BOT - Investment Policy - BOT -revisions
	BOT - Investment Policy - BOT - Investment Policy
	BOT - Spending Authority and Matrix-Changes
	BOT - Spending Authority and Matrix - BOT - Spending Authority and Matrix
	BOT - Senior Leaders Duty to Disclose - BOT - revisions
	BOT - Senior Leaders Duty to Disclose - BOT - Senior Leaders Duty to Disclose
	BOT - Guidelines for Negotiating Non-Physician Provider Agreements - BOT - Guidelines for Negotiating Non-Physician Provider Agreements No Change
	BOT - Guidelines for Negotiating Physician Contracts - BOT - Guidelines for Negotiating Physician Contracts No Change
	BOT - Financial Hardship Policy - BOT - Financial Hardship Policy No Change
	BOT - Attendance of Board Committee Meetings - BOT - Attendance of Board Committee Meetings No Change
	BOT - Medical Staff Leadership Direct Consultation with the Hospital Board of Trustees No Change
	BOT - Maintenance of Board and Board Committee Meeting Minutes - BOT - Maintenance of Board and Board Committee Meeting Minutes No Change
	Governance Memo for cont ed program
	Governance Board Continuing Education Program
	Chair Memo to Board July 2021 Quality Dr Barbara Sowada
	Quality Minutes July 21 2021
	Chair Report to Board July 2021 for Human Resources Committee Dr Barbara Sowada
	HR Committee Packet July 2021 for August 4 2021 Meeting
	Capital Expenditure Request
	Building and Grounds...Chair&apos;s Report...July 2021 Marty Kelsey
	B&G 2021 Agenda July
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes July 20 2021 Draft
	Compliance Committee
	Governance Committee
	1. Medical Physics Consultants, Inc. 
	Shadow Mountain Water 



